
 

 

 
June 26, 2012 

 
Via E-mail 
Mr. Michael J. Massey 
Chief Executive Officer 
Collective Brands, Inc. 
3231 Southeast Sixth Avenue 
Topeka, KS 66607 
 

Re: Collective Brands, Inc. 
 Preliminary Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A 

Filed June 1, 2012 
File No. 001-14770         

 
Dear Mr. Massey: 

 
We have limited our review of your filing to those issues we have addressed in 

our comments.  In some of our comments, we may ask you to provide us with 
information so we may better understand your disclosure. 

 
Please respond to this letter by amending your filing and providing the requested 

information.  If you do not believe our comments apply to your facts and circumstances 
or do not believe an amendment is appropriate, please tell us why in your response.   

 
After reviewing any amendment to your filing and the information you provide in 

response to these comments, we may have additional comments.   
 
Opinion of Perella Weinberg, page 44 
 

1. We note your disclosure on page 46 that subsequent events may affect Perella 
Weinberg’s opinion and that it does not have any obligation to update its opinion.  
We also note that Perella Weinberg’s opinion is dated May 1, 2012 and that the 
parties expect to close the merger near the end of the third quarter or in the early 
days of the fourth quarter.  Please disclose whether any material changes in the 
company’s operations, performance or in any of the projections or assumptions 
upon which Perella Weinberg based its opinion have occurred since the delivery 
of the opinion or that are anticipated to occur before the stockholder meeting. 

 
2. We note the description of the Analysis of Implied Transaction Premia and 

Multiples.  We further note that as part of its analysis Perella Weinberg calculated 
enterprise value as a multiple of the “last twelve months, or ‘LTM’, EBITDA 
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using the Company forecasts for the last quarter ended April 28, 2012 of that 
period.”  Please revise your disclosure of the financial forecasts on page 56 to 
disclose such information. 

 
Certain Company Forecasts, page 54 
 

3. We note your statements in the first two sentences in the penultimate paragraph 
on page 55 that no one makes any representation regarding the information 
included in the financial forecasts and that investors are cautioned not to rely on 
the forecasted financial information.  Please revise to eliminate the implication 
that you are not responsible for the accuracy of the information in your filing.  We 
do not object if you state that you do not assume responsibility if future results are 
materially different from those forecast. 

 
The Merger Agreement, page 71 
 

4. We note your statements in this section that “this section is not intended to 
provide you with any factual information about us” and that “information 
concerning the subject matter of the representations and warranties, which do not 
purport to be accurate as of the date of this proxy statement, may have changed 
since the date of the merger agreement.”  Please note that disclosure regarding an 
agreement’s representations, warranties or covenants in a proxy statement 
(whether through incorporation by reference or direct inclusion) constitutes a 
disclosure to investors, on which they are entitled to rely.  Please refer to Report 
of Investigation Pursuant to Section 21(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
and Commission Statement on potential Exchange Act Section 10(b) and Section 
14(a) liability, Exchange Act Release No. 51283 (Mar. 1, 2005).  Accordingly, if 
you continue to use these statements in your proxy statement, please revise them 
to remove any implication that the arrangement agreement does not constitute 
disclosure under the federal securities laws and to clarify that you will provide 
additional disclosure in your public reports to the extent that you are or become 
aware of the existence of any material facts that are required to be disclosed under 
federal securities law and that might otherwise contradict the representations and 
warranties contained in the agreement and will update such disclosure as required 
by federal securities laws. 

 
Annex C – Opinion of Perella Weinberg Partners LP, dated May 1, 2012 
 

5. We note the statement in the first sentence of the last paragraph on page C-3 that 
the opinion is “only” for the information and assistance of the board.  Because 
this statement appears to be a limitation on reliance by shareholders which is 
inconsistent with the disclosures relating to the opinion, please delete.  
Alternatively, disclose the basis for the financial advisor's belief that shareholders 
cannot rely upon the opinion to support any claims against the financial advisor 
arising under applicable state law (e.g., the inclusion of an express disclaimer in 
the financial advisor's engagement letter with the company).  Describe any 
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applicable state-law authority regarding the availability of such a potential 
defense.  In the absence of applicable state-law authority, disclose that the 
availability of such a defense will be resolved by a court of competent 
jurisdiction.  Also disclose that resolution of the question of the availability of 
such a defense will have no effect on the rights and responsibilities of the board of 
directors under applicable state law.  Further disclose that the availability of such 
a state-law defense to the financial advisor would have no effect on the rights and 
responsibilities of either the financial advisor or the board of directors under the 
federal securities laws. 

 
We urge all persons who are responsible for the accuracy and adequacy of the 

disclosure in the filing to be certain that the filing includes the information the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 and all applicable Exchange Act rules require.  Since the company 
and its management are in possession of all facts relating to a company’s disclosure, they 
are responsible for the accuracy and adequacy of the disclosures they have made.   
 

 In responding to our comments, please provide a written statement from the 
company acknowledging that: 
 

 the company is responsible for the adequacy and accuracy of the disclosure in the 
filing; 
 

 staff comments or changes to disclosure in response to staff comments do not 
foreclose the Commission from taking any action with respect to the filing; and 
 

 the company may not assert staff comments as a defense in any proceeding 
initiated by the Commission or any person under the federal securities laws of the 
United States. 

 
Please contact Shaz Niazi at (202) 551-3121 or Brigitte Lippmann at (202) 551-

3713 with any questions. 
 

Sincerely, 
  
 /s/ Brigitte Lippmann   for 
  

John Reynolds 
Assistant Director 

 


